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May 18, 2020 

This first amendment is a result of questions submitted to the District in response to the RFP for Unified 
Communications as a Service. 

If a representative of your firm is planning to attend the opening of the submitals on May 27, please notify Mark 
VanDero (Mark.VanDero@fwusd.org) so that we can be sure to have appropriate measures in place for physical 
distancing of all attendees.  Because this is an RFP, there will not be much to learn by attending the opening so the 
District will post a list of submissions received on the District website by May 28, 2020 for your convenience. 

1. I'm contacting you regarding the RFP you have posted for Unified Communications.  Based upon the 
details I'm seeing, it appears that we have a solution that might check all of the boxes you are looking for.  
However, the solution we have is already on NASPO which means that you might not have to go out to 
bid. 

The District has reviewed several options and has decided to issue a RFP.  If your firm is interested in providing 
services to the District, you should respond to the RFP. 

2. Part of our firm’s sales team and is a legal US Entity subsidiary reporting to the corporate office in 
Toronto, Canada.  Canada houses the development team.  Based on what I’m seeing on page 14 (12.  
Offshore Performance) of the RFP, I think disqualifies our firm from bidding.  Am I correct? 

If any secure or sensitive District data would be available to employees, sub-contractors, etc. that are located 
outside of the borders of the United States, your firm would be disqualified based upon the requirement that you 
have noted. 

3. In light of COVID-19, our firm has offered that employees work remote, joining global efforts of 
practicing social distancing to prevent further spread of the virus. Due to these new remote capabilities, 
employees do not have access to a notary, or the ability to send out original bid and contract documents 
in the mail.  We ask that our customers offer some flexibility in these times, and accept an electronic bid 
submission, instead of hard copies, and forego any notary requirements. Will you allow our firm to email 
over our bid response?” 

The District does not have a valid system in place to receive responses electronically while maintaining 
compliance with procurement guidelines.  We cannot accept an electronic submission via the internet.  If your 
firm would like to submit a single hard copy along with electronic files (CD-ROM, USB drive), that would be 
acceptable.  Signatures on the documents are not required to be “wet”. 

A signature without notarization will be sufficient for now; however, no award will be made unless and until all 
notarized forms are received by the District. 

4.  In reference to your specification -  • 911 call ability even if internet connection at admin is down (10 
physical school sites).  Question - Being this is a fully cloud – hosted platform that is being deployed on 
your existing network, what type of 911 back up outbound dialing capability will you be setting up, Lte, 
gateway with analog line outbound dialing interface, etc.? 

Gateway with analog-line outbound dialing interface 
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5. You mention “if internet connection at admin is down” - Can you please explain how the sites separate 

from “admin” access the internet? 

Each site is a node on the metro-ethernet that routes through the central admin building. When we stated "If 
internet connection at admin is down," we meant that we need 911-outbound dialing capability IF internet is 
down at the central admin building OR if internet is down at the given site. 

6. In reference to your specification - • Pricing for 900 total DIDs. Of these, 600 are active and 300 are 
"parked." Pricing shall specify costs for parked and active DIDs.  Question – Are you desiring to “port 
and retain” a total of 900 existing DID’s from your current carrier, 600 of which are in use now and 300 
retained for future use? 

Yes, we want to port and retain a total of 900 DID's from our current provider, with 600 being active and 300 
reserved for future use. 

7. Page 5 Section J states - Identification of Taxes in Proposal.  School Districts/Public Entities are subject 
to all applicable state and local transaction privilege taxes.  If Arizona resident Offerors do not indicate 
taxes on a separate item in the Proposal, the School District/Public Entity will conclude that the price(s) 
offered includes all applicable taxes.  At all times, payment of taxes and the determination of applicable 
taxes and rates are the sole responsibility of the Offeror. 

Page 21 Section 28 Price Clause states - Prices shall be firm for the term of the contract.  Prices as stated 
must be complete for all services offered and shall include all associated costs. DO NOT include sales tax 
on any item in the Proposal 

Question – These two pages seem to contradict one another – do you or do you not want applicable taxes 
line item listed? 

Offerors are required to identify and state taxes but should not include the tax in pricing.  The District evaluates 
price without consideration of taxes for the purposes of determining the likelihood of awarding to a specific 
vendor.  However, once an award is made, the District must know what to budget for taxes related to said 
award.  Specifically, your pricing data should be stated in a manner similar to the following.  Monthly service 
fee is $100 (not taxed), phones are $50 each plus 8.1%sales tax. 

8. What classification of station cabling are the sets being terminated on? 

T-568B 

9. Is all station cabling existing? 

Yes 

10. What topology will be used? 

“Tree” topology 

11. Are you requiring the chosen vendor to physically install all telephone sets at each location or are you 
desiring the sets to be delivered for F.W.U.S.D. self-installation? 

Handsets should be delivered to FWUSD for self-installation. 
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12. Are you looking for survivability of phone service in the event of total internet failure or just the ability 

for the 10 physical school sites to still function if the Administration building loses internet. 

Specifically we want 911-outbound dialing if internet goes down at either the site or the admin. No other voice 
service would be expected in the event of internet outage. 

13. Do all sites have their own internet or is it done through VPN’s to the Admin location. 

All sites have a metro-ethernet connection to the admin connection. 

14. What type and speeds of internet do the sites have. 

Smaller sites have 100 Mbps, mid-sized have 200 Mbps, and two largest sites have 500 Mbps, with a mix of 
copper and fiber handoffs. We are pre-wired for 10 Gbps, but the limit per site is 1 Gbps. 

15. Are all of the phone locations pre-wired with network connectivity. 

Yes. 

16. What type of switches are onsite and do they support VoIP VLAN’s and who will do the configuration 
for the new phones. 

Cisco Catalyst series switches are utilized at all locations. District IT department will handle switch 
configuration. 

17. Do you need installation of equipment or will this be handled by the IT department if we provide the 
phones pre-provisioned. 

District IT will install the equipment. 

18. Is there any possibility that because of the current pandemic situation FWUSD would accept electronic 
submissions rather than hard copy submissions? 

See question 3. 

19. In light of the pandemic, may we submit our response via email? 

See question 3. 

20. Per page 25, Proposal Format, is there a missing Tab 3 or should the tabs just be renumbered? 

The heading for Tab 3 was omitted.  The following should be in Tab 3 rather than Tab 2:   

Include any additional details about your offering and implementation that will assist the District in evaluating 
your offering. 

21. Page 27 states, “Offeror is responsible for sending a Performance Evaluation Survey to each client listed 
below.” Where is the Performance Evaluation Survey? 

The survey was omitted by error.  In light of the current situation and potential delays in turn around times, 
simply provide references with valid contact points and the District will contact references as needed. 
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22. Where may we find the required Drug-Free Workplace form? 

Many organizations manintan such a policy.  If your organization does not maintain such a policy, you may 
complete the statement attached to this amendment. 

23. I understand we need to submit to you our financials as part of the RFP.  We are a private company and 
our financials are confidential.  I would like to send those to you directly or to a confidential email 
address.  Could you please let me know how we can handle this. 

Submit all required information as directed in the RFP document and detail your request for these statements to 
be considered confidential using the form on Page 31 of the RFP. 

24. Is this requirement “911 call ability even if internet connection at admin is down (10 physical school 
sites)” a deal breaker if the initial project doesn’t offer this function due to no onsite controllers or 
equipment being included? Or will you still consider bids without this option included? 

Bids without the option of 911-calling with no internet will not be considered. 

25. Would an on premise or hybrid solution be considered to meet all technical requirements? 

No. 

26. It’s not clear from the RFP text how the District distinguishes ‘Virtual fax’ from ‘Cloud/ e-faxing’, can 
you please elaborate on the use case for faxing? 

We would like to be able to send/receive faxes without using a POTS line. 

27. Directory access from any handset - Are you looking for directory access to any handset in the district? 
Or directory access to any handset on a particular campus? And could you explain the importance of 
directory access to “any” handset to your organization? 

We would like any handset to be able to access a district-level directory (search for another user by last 
name/first name). 

28. Compliance with Ray Baum’s Act (dispatchable location conveyed with 911 calls) – Our firm is currently 
working to gain compliance with this act and has an anticipated completion date in 2021 as required by 
the Act. Once completed, it would be rolled out to all voice customers. Will this timeline eliminate our 
firm from having an opportunity to bid on this RFP at this time? 

The 2021 timeline is acceptable. 

29. Long distance calling capability, with specification of additional charges if applicable - Will any 
international calling be required? 

Yes. International calls to Mexico are common. Some international calls to Canada occur. Other international 
calls are rare. 
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30. Cloud or e-faxing capability, with specification of additional charges, if applicable- Could you elaborate 
on what features/functionality you are looking for in a cloud or e-faxing solution i.e. Receiving faxes, 
Sending faxes, desired file format, etc. 

See question 26. 

31. 540 standard office/classroom phones; 30 two-lines phones; 30 six-line phones - Could you please 
elaborate on what you consider a standard office/classroom phone i.e. what features/functionality would 
be required for the standard office/classroom phones, button capabilities, incoming/outgoing call paths to 
these phones, etc.? 

Standard office/classroom phones only require a single line. Two-line phones are used by administrators and 
allow the user to answer calls from two different lines. Six-line phones are used by administrative assistants and 
allow the user to answer calls from up to six different lines. All phones shall have speaker phone capability and 
district-wide directory access. All phones shall be able to make internal and external calls.  

32. Virtual fax service - Could you please elaborate on what you are looking for in a virtual fax service. i.e. 
sending faxes, receiving faxes, file format, etc. 

See question 26. 

33. Fee Schedule for Services – To clarify, this is a one-year term with up to four one-year renewals.  Overall, 
if funding allows, you are looking for a contract term of 5 years, billed monthly to the district but broken 
out on the RFP annually for funding year purposes? 

Per A.A.C. R7-2-1042(A.3.b), it is the intent of the District to award a multi-term contract, beginning during the 
fiscal year 2020-2021, and continuing until June 30, 2021.  If all conditions are met during this period of time, 
this contract can be extended, if funding is available, for up to an additional four one-year contracts.  

34. Drug-Free Workplace - on Page 25, bidders are asked to submit a form for “Drug-Free Workplace,” we 
did not see that form anywhere in the RFP. Could you please provide a copy of this form? 

See question 22. 

35. Addendum Acknowledgment Form – Bidders are asked to submit an addendum acknowledgement form. 
Could you please provide a copy of this form? 

Amendment acknowledgement should be indicated on the provided “Acknowledgement and Non-Collusion 
Affadavit” found on page 32 of the RFP. 

36. Compliance Statement - We see that a Compliance Statement form is attached to the RFP, but it is not 
otherwise referenced. We assume this form was erroneously left off the list of required forms to be 
submitted under Tab 4. Please confirm our assumption is correct. 

The Compliance statement is mandatory and should be submitted in Tab 4. 
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37. Special Terms and Conditions - Sec. 18 of the Special Terms and Conditions require deviations to be 

‘fully appended to the bid form on the vendor’s letterhead over the signature of the person signing the 
bid form, however the Deviations and Exceptions form attached to the RFP requires vendor’s deviations 
to be included as part of the Deviations and Exceptions form which is signed by the vendor. Will you 
accept (without penalty) a vendor providing only one copy of its exceptions as part of the Deviations and 
Exceptions form, and not providing a second copy of the deviations attached to the bid form? 

Only one submission of deviations and exceptions is required. 

38. You mention access to dial by directory: what directory will you be using? (AD/Google/etc.) 

Either Active Directory or Google can be used. 

39. Will classrooms require a DID and make outbound calls? 

Yes. 

40. We need more information on how you will be using the 600 active vs. 300 parked DIDs 

600 DIDs are in use. The other 300 should be reserved for possible future use. 

41. What type of user will receive the 6 line phone as well as the 2 line phone? 

Administrators will use two-line phones. Administrative assistants will use six-line phones. 

42. Will the phones require a power supply or will they be using PoE? 

PoE is preferred but not essential. 

43. Do the 10 physical schools sites have an internet connection to an ISP today? If so, who do you use? 

Yes. Cox is the ISP. 

44. Can you provide the NPA/NXX ranges for the 900 DIDs? 

696-8000 to 8699, 8800 to 8999 

45. Is Tab 3 on the RFP missing intentionally? 

See question 20. 

46. Are the Performance Evaluation Surveys mandatory?  Due to the current COVID-19 environment, they 
may be hard to receive or severely delayed. 

See question 21. 

47. Can you share your current topology? 

See question 10. 
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48. What are the current speeds at each location? 

See question 14. 

49. Do the phones in the classrooms need to be able to dial outside of the district aside from 911?  If Yes - will 
the phones be tied to users (typically teachers?)  If Yes - will the teachers need the ability to create video 
meetings/screen sharing sessions and or SMS text? 

Phones in classrooms do need to be able to dial outside. Phones will be associated with specific users. Teachers 
do not need to create video meetings or send texts. 

50. The same question for the office users.  Do they need the ability to SMS text and/or create video 
meetings/screen sharing. 

See question 49. Same parameters for administrative users. 

51. Do the phones need power supply or will they be connected to PoE? 

See question 42. 

52. Are there any other handset features that are required? 

All handsets must have speaker phone and directory access. 

53. Are there any other handset features that would be nice to have, but not required? 

No. 

54. This is more of an observation. On the RFP, page 25, there is not a tab 3, it goes from tab 2 to tab 4. 

See question 20. 

55. We need more information on how you will be using the 600 active vs 300 parked DIDs. Do you currently 
own 900 DIDs and 600 will be in use? 

We currently own 900 DIDs but only use 600. The rest are reserved for future expansion. 

56. One of your requirements is to have directory based dialing. Can you elaborate where the directory is 
coming from? (onsite active directory/google/etc.) 

See question 38. 

57. Can you elaborate on infrastructure. Do you have POE for phones or would you like an external power 
supply? 

See question 42. 

58. Can you provide network topology diagram including internet connections, firewall hardware and 
current internet band width availability? 

See attached document. Firewall hardware is Cisco ASA 5545. 
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59. Will classrooms require a DID and make outbound calls? 

Yes. 

60. What type of users will receive the 6 line phones as a well as the 2 line phones? 

See question 41. 

61. Can you provide the NPA/NXX ranges for the 900 DIDs? 

See question 44. 

62. If an Offeror intending to provide an RFP is in a location currently observing Federal, State or Local 
Covid-19 guidelines, would the district consider allowing an accommodation to accept completed RFP 
documentation by electronic submission (email or fax) as substitute for physical copies? 

See question 3. 

63. Would the district consider any responses recommending an on-premise solution or are you only 
considering cloud based systems?  I mainly ask this question as a result of your 911 requirements. 

64. What is the network topology? Can we get a network map? 

See question 58. 

65. Are there managed POE switches at each location? What make and model?  If no, will the district be 
providing these or should we include them in this response? If POE switches are to be included how 
many POE switches will be required per each location depending on the number of IDF closets? 

Yes, managed PoE switches are at every location: Cisco 2960 X switches. 

66. What is the make and model of the firewall? Will it support VLANs and QOS? 

Firewall is a Cisco ASA 5545. Yes, it supports VLAN and QOS. 

67. Is there a dedicated data drop at each location they want a phone? 

Yes. 

68. Are there any unmanaged switches at any of the locations? Will they be eliminated prior to cutover? 

No. 

69. Is there overhead paging at the schools? Yes or No?  If yes, will the phones need to be connected to the 
paging system? Is an IP paging adapter already in place? If yes, please provide the make and model. 

An existing paging system is in place at each site, and phones do not need to connect to the paging system. 

70. Are there any wall mounted phones? If yes, about how many? 

No. 
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71. Does the District want Unified Communications capability implemented on the desktops and mobile 

devices? 

No. 

72. Does the District want an automated attendant for each location? 

Yes. 

73. Does the District want separate directory listings for each location? 

No. A single, district-wide directory is requested, with search by last name/first name of user. 

74. What is the expected timeline for installation? 

Anticipated implementation timeline: Board approval on 6.23.2020; Purchase order issued 07.01.2020; set-up 
during month of July, 2020; handsets installed ideally by 7.31.2020. 

75. The RFP requests pricing for 900 DID’s. Does the district already own these 900 DID’s or will three be 
some new numbers to be provided in addition to the existing District owned numbers that will need to be 
ported? 

Yes. 

76. What is the existing phone system? 

Existing phone system is Cisco VoIP. 

77. 911 capability even if internet connection to admin is down. 

a. Do you have backup internet connectivity at each of the physical sites? 

No. 

b. Is this an option? 

No. 

c. If no backup local internet connectivity is available, do you need the phones to continue work locally 
within the school and be able to dial 911 from any phone in the building? 

In the event of internet outage, phones would need to be able to dial 911 but would not be expected to 
maintain connectivity for other local calls. 

d. Would a single analog phone (possibly red) connected to a local analog line in a central location at 
each location be sufficient for 911 in the event the phone system is down due to internet 
unavailability? 

This is not preferred. Ideally each handset will maintain 911-dialing capability even if internet is down. 
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e. If backup internet or analog service is required for 911 survivability does that need to be included in 

this proposal or will that be outside of this response and the responsibility of the district to provide? 

Yes, 911 survivability must be provided by the vendor. 

78. Are there hunt groups at each location? If so how many total hunt groups? 

No hunt groups currently exist. One DID will ring multiple extensions. 

79. How does one submit financials confidentially not with the binder? 

See question 23. 

80. 1.  On the Scope of Work Page 23, 911 call ability even if internet connection at admin is down (10 
physical sites).  Can you tell us how many phones will be provided at the 10 physical locations as per 
location?  This will help in the design. 

This is an estimate of the number of handsets per site: 
FW Hign School/District – 170 
FW Junior High School/Maintenance 110 
Sentinel Peak High School - 20 
Emily Metchner Early Learning Center - 20 
Centennial - 50 
Davis - 50 
Douglas -50  
Hendricks - 50 
Laguna - 40 
Richardson - 40 
 

81. Are the Network Switches POE?  Does the District require new switches in the design? 

Network switches are PoE. New switches are not required. 

82. Is there just one internet provider or multiple diverse providers? 

Cox is the sole internet service provider. 

83. Is the internet distributed to all of the locations through a centralized hub or does each site have their 
individual access? 

Each site is a node on the metro ethernet ring, with the main connection at the admin location. 

End of Amendment #1 
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DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION 

Preference must be given to vendors submitting a certification with their bid/proposal certifying 
they have a drug-free workplace.  The special condition is as follows: 

IDENTICAL TIE PROPOSALS – Preference shall be given to businesses with drug-free workplace programs.  
Whenever two or more bids, which are equal with respect to price, quality, and service for the 
procurement of commodities or contractual services, a bid received from a business that certifies that it 
has implemented a drug-free workplace program shall be given preference in the award process. 
Established procedures for processing tie bids will be followed if none of the tied vendors have a drug-
free workplace program, a business shall: 

1) Publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, 
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace and specify the actions 
that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition.  

2) Inform employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace, the business’s policy of 
maintaining a drug-free workplace, any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee 
assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violations. 

3) Give each employee engaged in providing the commodities or contractual services that are under bid 
a copy of the statement specified in subsection (1). 

4) In the statement specified in subsection (1), notify the employees that, as a condition of working on 
the commodities or contractual services that are under bid, the employee will abide by the terms of 
the statement and will notify the employer of any conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere 
to, any violation of any controlled substance law of the United States or any state, for a violation 
occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction. 

5) Impose a sanction on, or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program if such is available in the employee’s community, by any employee who is so 
convicted. 

6) Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of 
this section. 

 

As the person authorized to sign the statement, I certify that this firm complies fully with the above 
requirements. 

 

 

Signature of the person preparing response 

 

 

Company Name 

Must be executed and returned with proposal at time of opening to be considered. 
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